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Case No. TC-2005- 

 
STAFF’S COMPLAINT AGAINST 

CASS COUNTY TELEPHONE COMPANY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 
 
 COMES NOW the Staff of the Missouri Public Service Commission (Staff), pursuant to 

section 386.390.1 RSMo 2000,1 Commission Rule 4 CSR 240-2.070 and the Commission’s 

Order Establishing Investigation Case entered in Case No. TO-2005-0237 on January 14, 2005 

that “authorized [the Staff] to file a complaint(s) on any matters contained within the scope of 

this order,” and for its complaint against Cass County Telephone Company Limited Partnership 

and Local Exchange Company, LLC (LEC) states:  

Count I 

1. Section 386.390.1 provides that a “[c]omplaint may be made by the commission 

of its own motion, …or by … any… person… by petition or complaint in writing, setting forth 

any act or thing done or omitted to be done by any corporation, person or public utility…, in 
                                                           
1 All statutory citations are to RSMo 2000, unless otherwise noted. 
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violation, or claimed to be in violation, of any provision of law, or of any rule or order or 

decision of the commission [.]” 

2. Commission Rule 4 CSR 240-2.070(1) provides that the “commission staff 

through the general counsel” may file a complaint. 

3. The Commission’s “Order Establishing Investigation Case” entered in Case No. 

TO-2005-0237 and effective January 28, 2005 (Attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and incorporated by 

reference) in part provides:  “That the Commission Staff is hereby authorized to file a 

complaint(s) on any matters within the scope of this order.”  It also provides:  “That case TO-

2005-[0237] be established for the purpose of the investigation of the financial and operational 

status of any certificated company in which Mr. Kenneth Matzdorff has any ownership interest 

or operational control or influence resulting from his role as an officer or employee of such 

company” and “That the Commission Staff shall investigate any matters pertaining to the 

Universal Service Fund and report any irregularities to the Commission.” 

4. The Missouri courts have imposed a duty upon the Public Service Commission to 

first determine matters within its jurisdiction before proceeding to those courts.  As a result, 

“[t]he courts have ruled that the [Commission] cannot act only on the information of its staff to 

authorize the filing of a penalty action in circuit court; it can authorize a penalty action only after 

a contested hearing.”  State ex rel Sure-way Transp., Inc. v. Division of Transp., Dept. of 

Economic Development, State of Mo., 836 S.W.2d 23, 27 (Mo.App. W.D. 1992). 

5. Section 386.600 provides: 

An action to recover a penalty or a forfeiture under this chapter or to enforce the 
powers of the commission under this or any other law may be brought in any 
circuit court in this state in the name of the state of Missouri and shall be 
commenced and prosecuted to final judgment by the general counsel to the 
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commission. No filing or docket fee shall be required of the general counsel. In 
any such action all penalties and forfeitures incurred up to the time of 
commencing the same may be sued for and recovered therein, and the 
commencement of an action to recover a penalty or forfeiture shall not be, or be 
held to be, a waiver of the right to recover any other penalty or forfeiture; if the 
defendant in such action shall prove that during any portion of the time for which 
it is sought to recover penalties or forfeitures for a violation of an order or 
decision of the commission the defendant was actually and in good faith 
prosecuting a suit to review such order or decision in the manner as provided in 
this chapter, the court shall remit the penalties or forfeitures incurred during the 
pendency of such proceeding. All moneys recovered as a penalty or forfeiture 
shall be paid to the public school fund of the state. Any such action may be 
compromised or discontinued on application of the commission upon such terms 
as the court shall approve and order.  

 

6. Cass County Telephone Company Limited Partnership (CassTel) is a Maryland 

limited partnership.  The records of the Secretary of State of Missouri (Attached hereto as 

Exhibit 2 and incorporated by reference) show its registered agent to be William R. England, III, 

312 East Capitol Avenue, Jefferson City, Missouri 65102.  

7. The records of the Secretary of State of Missouri (Exhibit 2 attached hereto and 

incorporated by reference) show that the general partner of CassTel is Local Exchange Company 

LLC.    

 8. CassTel’s business office is located in Peculiar, Missouri.  CassTel’s principal 

business is providing telecommunications services to approximately 8,000 customers in Cass 

County, Missouri as well as a small number of customers in Kansas.   

9. CassTel is a “public utility” as that term is defined in section 386.020(42) and a 

“telecommunications company” as that term is defined in section 386.020(51), and is subject to 

the Commission’s jurisdiction. Sections 386.020(42) and 386.250(2). 

10. Local Exchange Company LLC (LEC) is a limited liability company registered in 

Maryland.   The records of the Secretary of State of Missouri (attached hereto as Exhibit 3 and 

incorporated by reference) show its registered agent to be Kenneth Matzdorff, 192 West 



 4

Broadway, Peculiar, Missouri 64028.  The records of the Secretary of State of Missouri (attached 

hereto as Exhibit 3A and incorporated by reference) also show its registered agent to be Brydon, 

Swearengen & England, 312 East Capitol Avenue, Jefferson City, Missouri 65102.  On both  

Applications for Registration of a Foreign Limited Liability Company, LEC listed its purpose or 

general character of its business is to engage in ownership and operation of local telephone 

companies.    

11. The National Exchange Carriers Association (hereinafter NECA) is a not-for-

profit organization created by the Federal Communication Commission (FCC) pursuant to 47 

C.F.R. § 69.601.  NECA’s purpose is to prepare and file access charge tariffs on behalf of all 

telephone companies that do not file separate tariffs.  A tariff is the rate charged by one 

telephone company to another telephone company for access and use of that company’s 

telephone system in the course of interstate telecommunications.  47 C.F.R. § 69.601 (c) requires 

that all data submissions made to NECA be accompanied by a certification statement from an 

officer or employee responsible for the overall preparation of the data submission that “the data 

have been examined and reviewed and are complete, accurate, and consistent with the rules of 

the Federal Communications Commission.”  47 C.F.R. § 69.601 (c) further provides that 

“Persons making willful false statements in this data submission can be punished by fine or 

imprisonment under the provisions of the United States Code, Title 18, Section 1001.” NECA 

collects money from individual telephone companies, known as “local exchange carriers,” under 

47 C.F.R., Part 69.  NECA distributes the funds back to local exchange carriers based upon 

whether the individual exchange carrier has costs above the national average cost as determined 

by NECA. 



 5

12. The Universal Service Administrative Company (hereinafter USAC) is a not-for-

profit corporation established to administer the Universal Service Fund (hereinafter USF).  The 

USF was established by the FCC to subsidize high cost rural telephone systems.  Pursuant to 47 

C.F.R. § 36.611, each local exchange carrier must submit information to NECA by July 31st of 

each year which sets forth the allowable expenses of the carrier in the previous calendar year.  

Based upon this submission of expenses, the USAC makes a determination whether rural 

telephone companies are eligible for cost subsidies from the USF.  The subsidies are disbursed 

by USAC to NECA to be paid out to the rural telephone companies the following calendar year. 

13. The Overland Data Center (ODC) was a company located in Overland Park, 

Kansas, that provided software support and information technology support to CassTel. 

 14. On January 18, 2005, Mr. Kenneth M. Matzdorff appeared in the United States 

District Court, Western District of Missouri, before the Honorable Dean Whipple in Kansas City, 

Missouri.  Mr. Matzdorff consented to the filing of an Information charging him with mail and 

wire fraud.  (Exhibit 4 attached hereto and incorporated by reference).    

 15. On January 18, 2005, Mr. Matzdorff pled guilty to the crimes in the Information 

and admitted his guilt in substantial detail including admitting the allegations in Exhibit 4 

(Transcript of Change of Plea Proceedings, attached hereto as Exhibit 5 and incorporated by 

reference.).    

16. Kenneth M. Matzdorff, at all times relevant to this complaint, was an employee of 

LEC.  At various times throughout the time of this complaint, Kenneth M. Matzdorff was the 

President of CassTel and/or  LEC and/or in charge of the operations of CassTel and/or LEC 

(Exhibit 4 and 5) . 
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17. At all times relevant to this complaint, Mr. Matzdorff was an officer and/or agent 

and/or employee of CassTel.   

18. Section 386.570 provides:   

1. Any corporation, person or public utility which violates or fails to comply with 
any provision of the constitution of this state or of this or any other law, or which 
fails, omits or neglects to obey, observe or comply with any order, decision, 
decree, rule, direction, demand or requirement, or any part or provision thereof, of 
the commission in a case in which a penalty has not herein been provided for such 
corporation, person or public utility, is subject to a penalty of not less than one 
hundred dollars nor more than two thousand dollars for each offense.  

2. Every violation of the provisions of this or any other law or of any order, 
decision, decree, rule, direction, demand or requirement of the commission, or 
any part or portion thereof, by any corporation or person or public utility is a 
separate and distinct offense, and in case of a continuing violation each day's 
continuance thereof shall be and be deemed to be a separate and distinct offense.  

3. In construing and enforcing the provisions of this chapter relating to penalties, 
the act, omission or failure of any officer, agent or employee of any corporation, 
person or public utility, acting within the scope of his official duties of 
employment, shall in every case be and be deemed to be the act, omission or 
failure of such corporation, person or public utility.  

 19. Kenneth M. Matzdorff admitted violating “other law” within the meaning of that 

term in section 386.570 by his guilty pleas to federal charges of conspiracy to commit mail and 

wire fraud brought under sections 1341 and 1343 of title 18 of the United States Code.  The 

charges were based on a conspiracy to defraud the Universal Service Administrative Company 

(USAC) and the National Exchange Carriers Association (NECA) by including as expenses of 

Cass County Telephone Company Limited Partnership payments made to Overland Data Center 

on falsified or fictitious invoices.  These expenses based on falsified or fictitious invoices were 

then used to qualify for unwarranted disbursements of subsidies from USAC and revenue 

distributions from NECA.    
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 20. Mr. Matzdorff ran CassTel.  During his guilty plea in the United States District 

Court, Western District of Missouri, before the Honorable Dean Whipple, on January 18, 2005, 

Mr. Matzdorff stated the following under oath:   

Q:  All right. Now, I’m going to have Mr. Becker give us a brief summary of the 
criminal conduct the government has against you. 

THE COURT:  Mr. Becker. 

MR. BECKER:  Mr. Matzdorff and others known to the United States Attorney 
entered into an agreement whereby they would seek to defraud two entities, the 
National Exchange Carriers Association, and the Universal Service 
Administrative Company  It’s NECA and USAC. 

The scheme involved the Cass County Telephone Company.  Mr. Matzdorff was 
the president at certain times and essentially ran the Cass County Telephone 
Company. 

The Cass County Telephone Company paid money to another company called the 
Overland Data Center based upon falsified or fictitious invoices.  As alleged in 
the Information, the payments over that time period from CassTel to Overland 
Data were approximately $11 million. 

The government has estimated that the value of the actual services during that 
time period was approximately $240,000. 

By having these added expenses, the Cass County Telephone Company made 
submissions to NECA and to USAC for essentially cost subsidies.  These two 
entities are free agents of the FCC and they subsidized high-cost rural telephone 
companies.  They’re two separate but very closely related programs. 

The Universal Service Funds help Cass County Telephone and other rural 
telephone companies build up their infrastructure, and they are subsidized because 
their cost per customer are higher, obviously because of the rural nature of their 
services. 

NECA is the cost-sharing between telecommunications companies, and the Cass 
County Telephone Company would, every year, if their average cost was higher 
than the national average, they would receive monies from NECA to make up the 
difference. 

These expenses then were part of the submissions made by the Cass County 
Telephone Company to NECA and to USAC.  They caused, obviously by having 



 8

approximately $10 million worth of extra expenses in their reports, caused NECA 
to pay Cass County Telephone approximately $5 million more than they would 
have. 

Similarly, the added expenses in the submissions by Cass County Telephone 
resulted in Universal Service Fund paying approximately $3.4 million more to 
CassTel than they otherwise would have. 

As part of the scheme, it wasn’t just CassTel paying money out to the Overland 
Data Company, the Overland Data Company then would send the money back 
either to CassTel or, later on, the parent company of CassTel, which is known as 
Local Exchange Carriers, LEC, for management fees or consulting fees 

So, if you will, the money went into a circle; CassTel paid Overland Data for 
work not performed, and then Overland Data paid LEC for work not performed, 
so the money came back to CassTel. 

But, then, that expense was put on their report to NECA and to USAC, which 
caused this higher rate of subsidy.  The mails used were FEDEX’d from Peculiar, 
Missouri, where Cass County Telephone is located, to NECA, the submissions, 
and then the wire - - in furtherance of the fraud were the wire transfers and money 
from Mellon Bank, in either Pittsburgh or Philadelphia, to the bank account of the 
Cass County Telephone Company. 

THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you, Mr. Becker. 

Mr. Mortenson, do you want to add anything to that description of the criminal 
conduct? 

MR. MORTENSON:  No, your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Anything you want to correct? 

MR. MORTENSON:  No. 

THE COURT:  All right. 

BY THE COURT: 

Q.  Mr. Matzdorff, does that accurately portray what you did? 

A.  Yes, it does, your Honor. 

Q.  Is there anything that you want to correct that Mr. Becker said? 
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A.  The only correction I would make is that Local Exchange Company is LEC, 
LLC, there’s two companies, and Local Exchange Company, but the 
characterization is correct. 

Q.  All right.  And this manner and means says this conduct went on from about 
January of ’98 and continuing on through about July 2004.  Is that correct? 

A.  That’s correct, your Honor. 

THE COURT:  And, Mr. Becker, I’m now reading stuff from the Information. 

BY THE COURT:   

Q.  It says, paragraph 7 in the manner and means, it says that “false and fictitious 
expenses resulted in an overpayment by USAC to CassTel of approximately $3.5 
million.”  Is that correct? 

A.  Yes, it is, your Honor. 

Q.  And then, of course, I got ahead of myself, paragraph 4, which says, “the 
payments by CassTel to ODC based upon the fictitious invoices totaled 
approximately $11 million between 1998 and 2003,” and “the total value of the 
actual services performed during 1997 to 2002 by ODC for CassTel is 
approximately $240,000.”  Is that correct? 

A.  Approximately, that’s right. 

Q.  And, of course - -  

MR. BECKER:  Your Honor, I’m sorry.  Let me give you  - - - there’s been a 
change in the language of the one that - -  

THE COURT:   What? 

MR. BECKER:  It’s “estimated at,” rather than “approximately.” 

THE COURT:  Okay.  It is estimated? 

MR. BECKER:  That’s right. 

THE COURT:   What paragraph? 

MR. BECKER:  It is the bottom of page 4. 

THE COURT:   Is it that first paragraph I read? 
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MR. BECKER:  Yes.  Paragraph 4, on the bottom of page 4. 

THE COURT:   Estimated. 

MR. BECKER:  The one you just read. 

THE COURT:   Thank you. 

BY THE COURT: 

Q.  It says “estimated at $240,000.” 

A.  That’s  correct, your Honor. 

Q.  All right.  And, of course, Mr. Becker says the means you used to transmit this 
documentation and so forth was FEDEX.  Is that correct? 

A.  That’s correct. 

Q.  Now, is there anything about the charge that you don’t understand, the charge 
and the Information? 

A.  No.  I understand it, your Honor. 

Q.  And you’re telling me you are guilty of that offense? 

A.  Yes, I am. 

 21. Mr. Matzdorff  ran the day-to-day operations of Cass County Telephone 

Company Limited Partnership when the foregoing false or fictitious invoices were created and 

when CassTel included them in the expenses used by CassTel to qualify for unwarranted 

disbursements of subsidies and revenue distributions from 1998 through about July, 2004 

(Exhibit 5).   

 22. The actions of Kenneth Matzdorff in the conspiracy to defraud the Universal 

Service Administrative Company and the National Exchange Carriers Association were within 

the scope of his official duties as an officer and/or agent and/or employee  and, therefore, are the 

actions of CassTel within the meaning of section 386.570.3. 
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 23. The actions of Kenneth Matzdorff in the conspiracy to defraud the Universal 

Administrative Company and the National Exchange Carriers Association were part of a 

continuing violation within the meaning of section 386.570.2 such that each day constitutes a 

separate and distinct offense subject to a penalty under section 386.570.1 from 1998 through July 

2004. 

 24. These admissions by Matzdorff are supported by the guilty plea of Daniel D. 

Martino on February 23, 2005 before the Honorable Howard F. Sachs, Judge of Division No. 6 

of the United States District Court for the Western District of Missouri in Kansas City, Mo.  The 

indictment charging Daniel D. Martino with crimes involving CassTel is attached hereto and 

incorporated by reference as Exhibit 6.  The transcript of Daniel D. Martino’s guilty plea is 

attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Exhibit 7.  Exhibit 8 is the Plea Agreement 

involving Daniel D. Martino attached hereto and incorporated by reference.  In the plea 

agreement, Daniel D. Martino pled guilty to conspiracy to commit mail and wire fraud.  Daniel 

D. Martino admitted that he committed the offenses charged in the indictment.  Daniel D. 

Martino was the president of F.S.E. Consulting Corp., which controlled the finances of ODC.   

 25. These admissions by Matzdorff are supported by the guilty plea of Richard T. 

Martino on February 23, 2005 before the Honorable Howard F. Sachs, Judge of Division No. 6 

of the United States District Court for the Western District of Missouri in Kansas City, Mo.  The 

indictment charging Richard T. Martino with crimes involving CassTel is Exhibit 6.  The 

transcript of Richard T. Martino’s guilty plea is Exhibit 7.  Exhibit 9 is the Plea Agreement 

involving Richard T. Martino attached hereto and incorporated by reference.  In the plea 

agreement, Richard T. Martino pled guilty to mail fraud and to conspiracy to commit mail and 

wire fraud.  Richard T. Martino admitted that he committed the offenses charged in the 



 12

indictment.  Richard T. Martino controlled LEC, CassTel, and ODC, and was the ultimate 

decision making authority at LEC, CassTel, and ODC. 

WHEREFORE, the Staff requests that the Commission: 

(a) establish a case to address the allegations contained in Count I of this Complaint; 
 
(b) make CassTel a party to this case for purposes of Count I;   
 
(c) make LEC a party to this case for purposes of Count I;  
 
(d) find that CassTel violated “any other law” within the meaning of section 

 386.570.1 through the actions of Kenneth Matzdorff as part of the conspiracy to 
 commit mail and wire fraud (18 U.S.C. section 1341 and 1343) as evidenced by 
 his guilty plea admitting to defrauding the Universal Service Administrative 
 Company and the National Exchange Carriers Association; and 

 
(e) authorize the General Counsel of the Commission to seek the maximum penalty 

 against Cass County Telephone Company Limited Partnership allowed by law for 
 this violation. 

Count II 

26. The Staff incorporates by reference the allegations of paragraph nos. 1-25 above. 

27. Section 386.560 provides as follows:  

Any person who shall willfully make any false entry in the accounts, books of 
account, records or memoranda kept by any corporation, person or public utility 
governed by the provisions of this chapter, or who shall willfully destroy, 
mutilate, alter or by any other means or device falsify the record of any such 
account, book of accounts, record or memoranda, or who shall willfully neglect or 
fail to make full, true and correct entries of such account, book of accounts, 
record or memoranda of all facts and transactions appertaining to the business of 
such corporations, persons or public utilities, or who shall falsely make any 
statement required to be made to the public service commission, in which a 
penalty has not heretofore been provided for, shall be deemed guilty of a felony, 
and upon conviction shall be punished by a fine of not less than one thousand 
dollars nor more than five thousand dollars, or by imprisonment for not less than 
two years nor more than five years, or by both such fine and imprisonment; 
provided, that the commission may, in its discretion, issue orders specifying such 
operating, accounting or financial papers, records, books, blanks, tickets, stubs or 
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documents, of carriers which may after a reasonable time be destroyed, and 
prescribing the length of time such books, papers or documents shall be 
preserved; and provided further, that such orders shall be in harmony with those 
of the Interstate Commerce Commission. 

 28. By relying on the false or fictitious invoices of Overland Data Center in making 

entries in the accounts, books of account, records or memoranda of Cass County Telephone 

Company Limited Partnership, Kenneth Matzdorff willfully made false, or willfully falsified, 

entries in the accounts, books of account, records or memoranda of Cass County Telephone 

Company Limited Partnership in violation of section 386.560.   

 29. These violations of law are the acts of CassTel under section 386.570.3. 

30. Section 386.590 provides: 

All penalties accruing under this chapter shall be cumulative of each other, and 
the suit for the recovery of one penalty shall not be a bar to or affect the recovery 
of any other penalty or forfeiture or be a bar to any original prosecution against 
any corporation, person or public utility, or any officer, director, agent or 
employee thereof. 

31. Therefore, CassTel  is subject to penalties pursuant to section 386.570.1 for these 

violations. 

WHEREFORE, the Staff requests that the Commission: 

(a) establish a case to address the allegations contained in Count II of this Complaint; 
 
(b) make CassTel a party to this case for purposes of Count II; 
 
(c) make LEC a party to this case for purposes of Count II;  
 
(d) find CassTel willfully made false, or willfully falsified, entries in the accounts and 
 books of account of CassTel in violation of section 386.560; and 
 
(e) authorize the General Counsel of the Commission to seek the maximum penalty 
 against CassTel allowed by law for this violation. 
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Count III 

32. The Staff incorporates by reference the allegations of paragraph nos. 1-29 above. 

 33. In determining the revenue requirement of CassTel and entering into the 

unanimous stipulation and agreement that the Commission approved in Case No. IR-2004-0354 

that was designed to reduce CassTel’s gross intrastate revenues by about $320 thousand per year, 

the Staff relied on the accounts, books of account and records of CassTel that included the 

aforesaid false entries. 

 34. The Commission promulgated Commission Rule 4 CSR 240-30.040 under the 

authority of Section 393.210.2 .    

 35. Commission Rule 4 CSR 240-30.040 requires that CassTel keep its accounts in 

accordance with the uniform system of accounts prescribed by the Federal Communications 

Commission (FCC) effective January 1, 1988. 

 36. Commission Rule 4 CSR 240-30.040 incorporates by reference FCC rule 47 CFR 

32.4 effective January 1, 1988.  

 37. In relying on the false invoices of Overland Data Center in making entries in the 

accounts and books of account, records or memoranda of CassTel, Kenneth Matzdorff willfully 

made false entries in the accounts, books of account, records or memoranda of CassTel in 

violation of Commission Rule 4 CSR 240-30.040, promulgated under the authority of section 

392.210.2, which incorporates by reference FCC rule 47 CFR 32.4 effective January 1, 1988.  

This FCC rule states: 

 Attention is directed to the following extract from section 220 of the Communications 

Act of 1934, 47 U.S.C. 220 (1984): 
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(e) Any person who shall willfully make any false entry in the accounts of any 
book of accounts or in any record or memoranda kept by any such carrier, or who 
shall willfully destroy, mutilate, alter, or by any other means or device falsify any 
such account, record, or memoranda, or who shall willfully neglect or fail to make 
full, true, and correct entries in such accounts, records, or memoranda of all facts 
and transactions appertaining to the business of the carrier, shall be deemed guilty 
of a misdemeanor, and shall be subject, upon conviction, to a fine of not less than 
$1,000 nor more than $5,000 or imprisonment for a term of not less than one year 
nor more than three years, or both such fine and imprisonment:  Provided, that the 
Commission may in its discretion issue orders specifying such operating, 
accounting or financial papers, records, books, blanks, or documents which may, 
after a reasonable time, be destroyed, and prescribing the length of time such 
books, papers, or documents shall be preserved.   
 
For regulations governing the periods for which records are to be retained, see 
part 42, Preservation of Records of Communications Common Carriers, of this 
chapter which relates to preservation of records. 
 
 
38. CassTel’s violations of the requirements of Commission Rule 4 CSR 240-30.040 

are punishable under section 392.360 which provides: 

Every telecommunications company, and all officers, agents and employees of 
any telecommunications company shall obey, observe and comply with every 
order, direction or requirement made by the commission, under authority of this 
chapter, so long as the same shall be and remain in force.  Any 
telecommunications company which shall violate any provision of sections 
392.190 to 392.530, or which fails, omits or neglects to obey, observe or comply 
with any order or decision or any direction or requirement of the commission, 
shall forfeit to the state of Missouri not to exceed the sum of five thousand dollars 
for each and every offense.  Every violation of any such order or decision or 
direction or requirement, or of said sections, shall be a separate and distinct 
offense, and, in case of a continuing violation, every day's continuance thereof 
shall be and be deemed to be a separate and distinct offense. 
 
 WHEREFORE, the Staff respectfully requests that the Commission: 

(a) establish a case to address the allegations contained in Count III of this 
 Complaint; 
 
(b) make CassTel a party to this case for purposes of Count III; 
 
(c) make LEC a party to this case for purposes of Count III; 
 
(d) find CassTel violated Commission Rule 4 CSR 240-30.040 by willfully making 
 false entries into the accounts and books of account of CassTel; and, 



 16

 
(e) authorize the General Counsel of the Commission to seek the maximum penalty 

 against CassTel allowed by law for this violation. 

Count IV 

 39. The Staff incorporates by reference the allegations of paragraph nos. 1-38 above. 

40. Under oath at the April 19, 2004 evidentiary hearing held in the Commission case 

styled In the Matter of the Investigation into the Earnings of Cass County Telephone Company, 

Case No. IR-2004-0354 (Exhibit 10 attached hereto and incorporated by reference), Mr. 

Matzdorff testified as follows: 

Q. So, to the best of your knowledge, the only thing that you're aware of that 
could be referred to in the article -- that could be referring to in the article in 
regard to transfers of money from CassTel to Overland Data Center is this 
$970,000?  
A. I don't know how to answer that, Commissioner, simply because my 
sources of information are much the same as yourself.  I've seen the newspaper 
article and I've seen the indictment that referenced that.  And I -- that's really the 
only thing I know how to answer on that without, you know, specifics and I don't 
know his sources beyond that.  
Q. Well, would there be any other transfers of money that you're aware of 
from CassTel to Overland Park--Overland Data Center?  
A. Overland Data Center provided services to Cass County.  They provided 
data functions for the company.  And that was listed -- 
Q. I see. 
A. -- that was listed in our -- our responses.  
Q. What kind of data functions were performed?  
A. Oh, as an example, the Public Service Commission requires that we 
attempt to contact two customers -- or customers twice before we would ever 
attempt to disconnect them for non-payment.  We utilize voice recognition units 
that they have.  Our underlying network support technical expertise as it relates -- 
we chose not to hire that personnel and felt we could do it more effectively.  We 
live in a very rural area and don't have that expertise nor is it easy to attract it, so 
we contract those services out.  
Q. So there would have been additional monies paid from CassTel to 
Overland Data Center in the last several years?  
A. That's correct.  
Q. And you're saying that except for the $970,000, to your knowledge, the 
only monies that were transferred were for services?  
A. Okay.  To my knowledge, CassTel is only paid out for services 
rendered to the company.   
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Q. And what period of time were those services rendered, if you know?  
A. They -- the company started on April 1st, 1996 and they continued until 
June, at which time I became aware of alleged improprieties and I terminated 
the functions.  
Q. In June of what year?  
A. 2003. 

Emphasis added (Ex. 10, p. 57 – 59). 

41. Section 386.560, in part, provides: 

Any person . . .  who shall falsely make any statement required to be made to the 
public service commission, in which a penalty has not heretofore been provided 
for, shall be deemed guilty of a felony, and upon conviction shall be punished by 
a fine of not less than one thousand dollars nor more than five thousand dollars, 
or by imprisonment for not less than two years nor more than five years, or by 
both such fine and imprisonment; . . . . 
 

42. Each of Mr. Matzdorff’s statements, “To my knowledge, CassTel is only paid 

out for services rendered to the company” and “until June [2003], at which time I became 

aware of alleged improprieties” are contradicted by his testimony when he pled guilty to the 

federal charges of conspiracy to commit mail and wire fraud brought under sections 1341 and 

1343 of title 18 of the United States Code.  At the plea hearing held January 18, 2005, Mr. 

Matzdorff testified under oath, in part, as follows: 

[THE COURT]  Q. Now, this offense is alleged to have taken place during a 
period of time, I believe, from ’98 to –  
 
THE COURT:  Is that correct, Mr. Becker? 

 
MR. BECKER:  Yes, sir. 

 
THE COURT:  '98 through '04? 

 
MR. BECKER:  Yes. 

 
BY THE COURT: 
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Q.  -- through '04.  During that period of time when you did any of the acts, the 
overt acts, in the manner and means that are spelled out in this information, when 
did anything that was part of this criminal conduct, what was the condition of 
your physical health, good or bad? 

 
[Mr.  Matzdorff]  A.  It was good. 

 
Q.  What was the condition of your mental health? 

 
A.  It was sound. 

 
Q.  Were you under the influence of any drugs or alcohol when you committed 
any of the acts that comprise your criminal conduct in this information? 

 
A.  No, I was not. 

 
Q.  All right.  Now, I’m going to have Mr. Becker give us a brief summary of the 
criminal conduct the government has against you. 
 
THE COURT:  Mr. Becker. 
 
MR. BECKER:  Mr. Matzdorff and others known to the United States Attorney 
entered into an agreement whereby they would seek to defraud two entities, The 
National Exchange Carriers Association, and the Universal Service 
Administrative Company.  It’s NECA and USAC. 
 
The scheme involved the Cass County Telephone Company.  Mr. Matzdorff was 
the president at certain times and essentially ran the Cass County Telephone 
Company. 
 
The Cass County Telephone Company paid money to another company called the 
Overland Data Center based upon falsified or fictitious invoices.  As alleged in 
the information, the payments over that time period from CassTel to Overland 
Data were approximately $11 million. 
 
The Government has estimated that the value of the actual services during that 
time period was approximately $240,000. 
 
By having these added expenses, the Cass County Telephone Company made 
submissions to NECA and to USAC for essentially cost subsidies.  These two 
entities are free agents of the FCC and they subsidized high-cost rural telephone 
companies.  They’re two separate but very closely related programs. 
 
The Universal Service Funds help Cass County Telephone and other rural 
telephone companies build up their infrastructure, and they are subsidized 
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because their cost per customer are higher, obviously because of the rural nature 
of their services.  
 
NECA is the cost-sharing between telecommunications companies, and the Cass 
County Telephone Company would, every year, if their average cost was higher 
than the national average, they would receive monies from NECA to make up the 
difference. 
 
These expenses then were part of the submissions made by the Cass County 
Telephone Company to NECA and to USAC.  They caused, obviously by having 
approximately $10 million worth of extra expenses in their reports, caused NECA 
to pay Cass County Telephone approximately $5 million more than they would 
have. 
 
Similarly, the added expenses in the submissions by Cass County Telephone 
resulted in Universal Service Fund paying approximately $3.4 million more to 
CassTel than they otherwise would have. 
 
As part of the scheme, it wasn’t just CassTel paying money out to the Overland 
Data Company, the Overland Data Company then would send the money back 
either to CassTel or, later on, the parent company of CassTel, which is known as 
Local Exchange Carriers, LEC, for management fees or consulting fees. 
 
So, if you will, the money went into a circle; CassTel paid Overland Data for 
work not performed, and then Overland Data paid LEC for work not performed, 
so the money came back to CassTel. 
 
But, then, that expense was put on their report to NECA and to USAC, which 
caused this higher rate of subsidy.  The mails used were FedEx’d from Peculiar, 
Missouri, where Cass County Telephone is located, to NECA, the submissions 
and then the wire—in furtherance of the fraud were wire transfers and money 
from Mellon Bank, in either Pittsburgh or Philadelphia, to the bank account of the 
Cass County Telephone Company. 
 
THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you, Mr. Becker. Mr. Mortenson [Mr. 
Matzdorff’s counsel], do you want to add anything to that description of the 
criminal conduct? 
 
MR. MORTENSON:  No, Your Honor. 
 
THE COURT:  Anything you want to correct? 
 
MR. MORTENSON:  No. 
 
THE COURT:  All right. 
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BY THE COURT: 
 
Q.  Mr. Matzdorff, does that accurately portray what you did? 
 
A.  Yes, it does, your Honor. 
 
Q.  Is there anything that you want to correct that Mr. Becker said? 
 
A.  The only correction I would make is that Local Exchange Company is LEC, 
LLC, there’s two companies, and Local Exchange Company, but the 
characterization is correct. 
 
Q.  All right.  And this manner and means says this conduct went on from about 
January of ’98 and continuing on through about July 2004.  Is that correct? 
 
A.  That’s correct, your Honor. 
 
THE COURT:  And, Mr. Becker, I’m now reading stuff from the information. 
 
BY THE COURT: 
 
Q.  It says, paragraph 7 in the manner and means, its says that “false and fictitious 
expenses resulted in an overpayment by USAC to CassTel of approximately $3.5 
million.”  Is that correct? 
 
A.  Yes, it is, your Honor. 
 
Q.  And then, of course, I got ahead of myself, paragraph 4, which says, “The 
payments by CassTel to ODC based upon the fictitious invoices totaled 
approximately $11 million between 1998 and 2003,” and “the total value of the 
actual services performed during 1997 to 2002 by ODC for CassTel is 
approximately $240,000.”  Is that correct? 
 
A.  Approximately, that’s right. 
 
Q.  And, of course – 
 
MR. BECKER:  Your Honor, I'm sorry.  Let me give your—there’s been a 
change in the language of the one that – 
 
THE COURT:  What? 
 
Mr. Becker:  It's "estimated at," rather than "approximately." 
 
THE COURT:  Okay.  It is estimated? 
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MR. BECKER:  That’s right. 
 
THE COURT:  What paragraph? 
 
MR. BECKER:  It is the bottom of page 4. 
 
THE COURT:  Is it that first paragraph I read? 
 
MR. BECKER:  Yes.  Paragraph 4, on the bottom of page 4. 
 
THE COURT:  Estimated. 
 
MR. BECKER:  The one you just read. 
 
THE COURT:  Thank you. 
 
BY THE COURT: 
 
Q.  It says "estimated at $240,000. 
 
A.  That’s correct, your Honor. 
 
Q.  All right.  And, of course, Mr. Becker says the means you used to transmit 
this documentation and so forth was FedEx.  Is that correct? 
 
A.  That’s correct. 
 
Q.  Now, is there anything about the charge that you don’t understand, the charge 
and the information? 
 
A.  No.  I understand it, your Honor. 
 
Q.  And you’re telling me you are guilty of that offense? 
 
A.  Yes, I am. 

42. Each of the statements made before the Commission on April 19, 2004 was 

required to be made to the Public Service Commission by section 386.470 which provides:  

No person shall be excused from testifying or from producing any books or 
papers in any investigation or inquiry by or upon any hearing before the 
commission or any commissioner, when ordered to do so by the commission, 
upon the ground that the testimony or evidence, books or documents required of 
him may tend to incriminate him or subject him to penalty or forfeiture, but no 
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person shall be prosecuted, punished or subjected to any penalty or forfeiture for 
or on account of any act, transaction, matter or thing concerning which he shall 
under oath have testified or produced documentary evidence; provided, however, 
that no person so testifying shall be exempt from prosecution or punishment for 
any perjury committed by him in his testimony. Nothing herein contained is 
intended to give, or shall be construed as in any manner giving unto any 
corporation immunity of any kind. 

43. When Mr. Matzdorff made these statements on April 19, 2004, Mr. Matzdorff was 

running the day-to-day operations of CassTel. 

44. These statements of Kenneth Matzdorff were made within the scope of his official 

duties of employment as the operator of CassTel and, therefore, are the actions of CassTel within 

the meaning of section 386.570.3. 

45. Each of these statements is a separate and distinct offense subject to a penalty 

under section 386.570.1. 

WHEREFORE, the Staff requests that the Commission: 

(a) establish a case to address the allegations contained in Count IV of this 
 Complaint; 
 
(b) make CassTel a party to this case for purposes of Count IV; 

 
(c) find that CassTel violated “any other law” within the meaning of section 

386.570.1 through the testimony of Kenneth Matzdorff before the Commission on 
April 19, 2004 that is contradicted by his allocution to the federal charges of 
conspiracy to commit mail and wire fraud brought under sections 1341 and 1343 
of title 18 of the United States Code; and 
 

(d) authorize the General Counsel of the Commission to seek the maximum penalty 
against CassTel allowed by law for these violations; 

(e) make LEC a party to this case for purposes of Count IV. 
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Respectfully submitted, 

DANA K. JOYCE 
General Counsel 

 
 
      /s/_Robert Franson________ 

Robert Franson 
Senior Counsel 
Missouri Bar No. 34643 
 
Attorney for the Staff of the  
Missouri Public Service Commission 
P.O. Box 360 
Jefferson City, MO  65102 
(573) 751-6651 (Telephone) 
(573) 751-9285 (Fax) 
robert.franson@psc.mo.gov 
 
 

      /s/ _William K. Haas  _______ 
      William K. Haas 
      Deputy General Counsel 
      Missouri Bar No. 28701 
 
      Attorney for the Staff of the  
      Missouri Public Service Commission 
      P. O. Box 360 
      Jefferson City, MO 65102 
      (573) 751-7510 (Telephone) 
      (573) 751-9285 (Fax) 
      william.haas@psc.mo.gov 
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Certificate of Service 
 

 I hereby certify that copies of the foregoing have been mailed, hand-delivered, 
transmitted by facsimile or emailed to all counsel of record this 8th day of April 2005. 
 
William R. England III 
Registered Agent for Cass County  
   Telephone Company Limited Partnership 
P.O. Box 456 
312 E. Capitol Avenue 
Jefferson City, MO  65102-0456 
 
BRYDON, SWEARENGEN & ENGLAND 
Registered Agent for Local Exchange Company LLC 
312 E. Capitol Ave. 
Jefferson City, MO  65102 
 
Mark A. Thornhill 
Petere Mirakian III 
Philip W. Goodin 
SPENCER FANE BRITT & BROWNE LLP 
1000 Walnut Street, Suite 1400 
Kansas City, MO  64106-2140 
 
Office of Public Counsel 
Governor Office Building 
200 Madison Street 
Jefferson City, MO  65101 
 
 

 /s/ Robert Franson________ 
 Robert Franson 
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Rebecca McDowell Cook
Secretary of State

CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION

WHEREAS

	

FOREIGN LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
,

LOCAL EXCHANGE COMPANY LLC

AND EXISTING UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MARYLAND
HAS FILED WITH THIS STATE ITS APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION AND
WHEREAS THIS APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION CONFORMS TO THE
MISSOURI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ACT ;

NOW, THEREFORE, I, REBECCA MCDOWELL COOK, SECRETARY OF STATE,
STATE OF MISSOURI, BY VIRTUE OF AUTHORITY VESTED IN ME BY LAW,
DO CERTIFY AND DECLARE THAT ON THE 20TH DAY OF MARCH, 1997,
THE ABOVE FOREIGN LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY IS DULY AUTHORIZED
TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE STATE OF MISSOURI
AND IS ENTITLED TO ANY RIGHTS GRANTED
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANIES



and is to dissolve on :

Name

State of Missouri
Rebecca McDowell Cook, Secretary of State

P.O. Box 778, Jefferson City, Mo . 65102

Corporation Division

Application for Registration of a Foreign
Limited Liability Company

(Submit in duplicate with registration fee of $105)

1 . The name of the foreign limited liability company is :
	~.ocpw1... G KcrAp	C~nc 6~~cL L L

and is organized in	 on ncv c''rn~~ \ ` `~	
(Jurisdiction)

	

(Date of formation)

	 1k-~	6ex	31, 2O'-
Month/Day/Year

2. The name under which the foreign limited liability company will conduct business in this state is :
1,EC 1."L-C-, .

3 . The purpose of the foreign limited liability company or general character of the business it proposes to transact
in this state is :
	EY1CAGMm0"n6V-Sy&W Prn~ oE'Cs=oZPS - o¢\..ocp~~ ~mP~'~

z-)`Vb NW PnDQtsRQj ;?m PrlL Pn-s o6z&SSPR-14 To 0)R cUr~daCloan~~~c s~S
3)GnGca	.yr\	 Pf(\-ko"C}ECs~\.cwGJL'?'cc oa F'	LtQuri1aQ~?c~ '%I '-1163rnft S

4. The name and address of the limited liability company's registered agent in Missouri is :
$~~~Od `SweRRt~^s~6c~s~~ef~l.Prn9 3\ia . cc -WE `	so~~' t fl1o 61\oZ

Street address

	

City/State/Zip

5. The address of the registered office in the jurisdiction organized . If not required, then the principal office
address of the foreign limited liability company is :

1'12 W, QIRWA->,nl PM
Street address

6. For tax purposes, is the limited liability company considered a corporation? Xyes 1 no

In affirmation thereof, the facts stated above are true :
	J~M•.1

.1	 Authorized signature

	 •41,	 Authorized signature

	 Authorized signature

LLC-4 (12-94)

~EC~1~PrR\ rnT SCvP- 4,40-78
City/State/Zip

R=ILED AND CERTIFICATE

1S-91.1E0
MAR 2 0 1997

0-401CC 4
ECRETA e.&, 1( ~v

Yon-
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